
 
 
 

Delegated Decisions by Cabinet Member for Adult 
Social Care 
 
Tuesday, 21 April 2015 at 9.00 am 
County Hall, New Road, Oxford 
 
 

Items for Decision 
 
The items for decision under individual Cabinet Members’ delegated powers are listed 
overleaf, with indicative timings, and the related reports are attached.  Decisions taken 
will become effective at the end of the working day on Wednesday 29 April 2015               
unless called in by that date for review by the appropriate Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Copies of the reports are circulated (by e-mail) to all members of the County Council. 
 
These proceedings are open to the public 
 

 
 
 
 
Note:  Date of next meeting: 12 May 2015 
 
 
 
 
If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of 
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer 
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 
 
 

 
Peter G. Clark  
County Solicitor April 2015 
 
 
Contact Officer: 

 
 
Julie Dean 
Tel: (01865) 815322; E-Mail: julie.dean@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



Page 2  
 

 

 

Items for Decision 
 

1. Declarations of Interest  

2. Question from County Councillors  
 Any county councillor may, by giving notice to the Proper Officer by 9 am two 

working days before the meeting, ask a question on any matter in respect of the 
Cabinet Member’s delegated powers. 
 
The number of questions which may be asked by any councillor at any one 
meeting is limited to two (or one question with notice and a supplementary 
question at the meeting) and the time for questions will be limited to 30 minutes in 
total. As with questions at Council, any questions which remain unanswered at the 
end of this item will receive a written response. 
 
Questions submitted prior to the agenda being despatched are shown below and 
will be the subject of a response from the appropriate Cabinet Member or such 
other councillor or officer as is determined by the Cabinet Member, and shall not 
be the subject of further debate at this meeting. Questions received after the 
despatch of the agenda, but before the deadline, will be shown on the Schedule of 
Addenda circulated at the meeting, together with any written response which is 
available at that time. 
 

 

3. Petitions and Public Address  

4. Oxfordshire Employment Service Contracts with Other Local 
Authorities and Agencies  

 Forward Plan Ref: 2015/026 
Contact: Karen McIndoe, Operations Manager (Independent Living Service) Tel: 
(01865) 897971 
 
Report by Director for Adult Social Care (CMDASC4). 
 
The report relates to Oxfordshire Employment Services in Social & Community 
Services which includes County Print Finishers and the Design/Reprographics unit. 
As part of Independent Living Services, Oxfordshire Employment Services support 
people with disabilities or long term health conditions across Oxfordshire to find or 
return to work through training, employment support, advice and guidance.  
 
The service is currently funded by Oxfordshire County Council and small annual 
grant funds for specific areas of work such as Access to Work and Oxfordshire 
Clinical Commissioning Group funding for Asperger’s support. The Service also 
receives income by providing services as a subcontractor to Shaw Trust as part of 
the Department for Work and Pension’s Workchoice scheme (Shaw Trust being a 
contractor to the Department for Work and Pensions). 
 
This report informs the Cabinet Member of the potential to extend the existing 
WorkChoice contract and permissions for this and seeks approval to enter into 
possible future contracts with third parties. 



Page 3  
 

 

 
 
The Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care is RECOMMENDED to:  

 
(a) note the current arrangements with Shaw Trust and the potential 

for the contract to be extended for up to two years; and 
 

(b) agree that the Director of Adult Social Care enters into future 
contracts with other organisations and local authorities for 
Oxfordshire Employment Services to provide services to those 
organisations and local authorities that meet the aims of the 
service.  

 
 
 
 
  

 

 

 
 
 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Division(s): N/A 
 

CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE 
21 April 2015 

 
OXFORDSHIRE EMPLOYMENT SERVICE CONTRACTS WITH 
OTHER LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND AGENCIES 
 

Report by Director of Adult Social Services 
 

Introduction 
 
1. Oxfordshire Employment Service incorporates County Print Finishers and the 

Reprographics and Design unit. 
 

2. Since 2001 Oxfordshire Employment Services and County Print Finishers 
have held a range of contracts with The Department of Work & Pensions to 
support training and employment support for people with disabilities and long 
term health conditions. The first contract was New Deal for Disabled People 
which ran from 2001 to 2009/10. An additional Workstep contract was 
introduced during the final year of the New Deal contract, which took the place 
of the old Supported Employment grants and funded employment and training 
within County Print Finishers. Both of these contracts were with the 
Department of Work & Pensions.  

 
3. In 2010 Workstep and New Deal ceased and both merged into a new 

programme called WorkChoice, which also introduced the Prime Contractor 
model, whereby large organisations took on regional contracts with the 
Department of Work & Pensions and subcontracted to smaller organisations. 
This reduced the number of contractors the Department of Work & Pensions 
were dealing with directly and at that time Local Authorities were not 
considered as potential Prime Providers but sub-contractors.  

 
4. For our region SHAW Trust were awarded the Prime Contractor arrangement 

and entered into a WorkChoice contract with Oxfordshire Employment 
Services (including County Print Finishers) as a third party contractor to 
provide employment and training opportunities across Oxfordshire.  The 
contract provides funding for the permanent and temporary training roles at 
County Print Finishers (previously funded via Workstep) and sets yearly 
targets for the number of people supported into work and sustained outcomes.  

 
5. As part of the overall service County Print Finishers not only employs 16 

people with disabilities and/or long term health conditions it also provides a 
platform for ten six month paid training placements for people preparing for or 
returning to work. These placements are not all just for Print Finishing but 
include options such as administrator roles, the Future Clean car cleaning 
project or graphic design and reprographics.  

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



6. As permanent posts in County Print Finishers become available they are 
converted to temporary six month training posts and it is hoped to further 
develop the range of training options available within the WorkChoice funding 
going forward. 

 
Current Issue 
 

7. Shaw Trust is likely to extend the WorkChoice contract with Oxfordshire 
Employment Services by eighteen months whilst Department of Work & 
Pensions decides how it wishes to proceed with its overall work programme. 
Shaw Trust have the right to extend the contract for up to two 
years.  Extensions are not unusual and occurred with the previous contracts. 
During the contract extension SHAW Trust may also ask sub-contractors to 
take on additional employment support contracts, which we would be keen to 
consider. It is anticipated that any additional contracts would also be covered 
by the permissions as set out in the recommendations section of this report. 

 
8. Legal services have raised a query regarding cabinet approvals for contracts 

with third parties as it appears formal permissions were received in 2010 but 
only in relation to County Print Finishers, and not all of Oxfordshire 
Employment Services, when the contract changed to Workchoice.   

 
Financial and Staff Implications 

 
9. Currently the Workchoice contract funds: 

• Temporary support staff employed to fulfil the contract targets. 
• Ten six month training placements for people preparing for or returning to 

work 
• Print Finisher posts for people with disabilities and/or long term health 

conditions. 
 

10. On average Oxfordshire Employment Services receives £252,000 per annum 
via the contract and overachieves on the targets, with any overachievement 
funding further input from support workers that are employed on a temporary 
basis linked to the contract.  
 

11. Risk assessments are completed and reviewed annually to ensure compliance 
with the contract so that any funding shortfalls are mitigated. All temporary 
posts are linked to the contract funding therefore risks to the organisation are 
minimal. 
 

12. Legal services have advised that in general terms, the Council is able to 
provide services for a charge where the services are discretionary and the 
charge is on a cost-recovery basis.  The Council is also able to trade with third 
parties for a profit without setting up a separate trading company where the 
activity is covered by the Local Authorities (Goods and Services) Act 1970 
(which requires the services to be of specific types and to be provided to 
certain public sector bodies).  The charging for the current Shaw Trust 
contract is on a cost-recovery basis.  Legal advice should be taken before any 

Page 2



further arrangements are entered into to ensure that the Council has sufficient 
power to enter into any proposed contract. 

 
Equalities Implications 

 
13. Oxfordshire Employment Service supports people with disabilities and or long 

term health conditions to prepare, train and enter or return to paid 
employment, thereby supporting equality and economic wellbeing. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
14. The Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care is RECOMMENDED to:  

 
(a) note the current arrangements with Shaw Trust and the potential for the 

contract to be extended for up to two years; and 
 

(b) agree that the Director of Adult Social Care enters into future contracts 
with other organisations and local authorities for Oxfordshire 
Employment Services to provide services to those organisations and 
local authorities that meet the aims of the service.  

 
 

 
John Jackson 
Director for Adult Social Services 
 
Background papers:  Cabinet Report 2010, Approval for County Print Finishers to 

enter into contracts with other local authorities and agencies 
 
Contact Officer:  Karen McIndoe, Operations Manager (Independent Living 

Services), Social & Community Services, Tel: (01865) 897971
  

April 2015 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Oxfordshire Employment Service Contracts with Other Local Authorities and Agencies

